
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING PACKET 

MARCH 10, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 

Mayor Council Members  

Merle Aaron Allan Steagall 

City Manager Ray Calfee 

Darrell Boeske Andy Curry 

City Secretary Norman Funderburk 

Jason Stuebe David Pierce  

     

Agenda 

Humble City Council 

Regular Meeting 

Thursday, March 10, 2016 6:30 P.M.  

City Hall Council Chamber, 114 West Higgins 

Humble, Texas 

 

Call to order. 

 

1. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

2. Consent agenda items which consist of ministerial or “housekeeping” items as required 

by law.  Items may be removed from the consent agenda and discussed by majority vote 

of the Council. 

 

a. Minutes – Regular Meeting Minutes February 11, 2016 

b. Current Invoices 

c. Monthly Department Reports 

d. Correspondence 

 

3. Ordinance 16-776 declaring unopposed candidates in the May 7, 2016 General City 

Election, elected to office; cancelling the election; cancelling the special election; 

providing a severability clause; and providing an effective date. 

 

Ordenanza No. 16-776 declara electos al cargo a las candidatos sin oposicion en las 

eleccionnes generals de la ciudad del 7 de mayo de 2016; cancelando las elecciones; 

cancelando de la eleccion especial; estipulando una clausula de separabilidad; y 

estipulando un fech para entrar en vigencia.   

 

4. Ordinance 16-777 amending Chapter 38, “Subdivisions,” Section 27 “Multifamily 

Residential Uses; General Provisions,” Subsection (1) and Subsection (2); decreasing the 

number of multifamily dwelling units per acre, and amending the lot size; and providing 

for severability. 

 

5. Ordinance 16-778 amending Chapter 38 “Subdivisions,” Section 23 “Building Setback 

Restrictions,” Subsection (2) “Local Streets,” Item (C); amending Chapter 12, “Buildings 



and Building Regulations,”  Section 131 “Commercial Setback Lines,” Subsection (3) 

and Subsection (4); and providing for severability. 

 

6. Resolution 16-762 amending Section 10.10 Retiree Health and Dental Insurance of the 

Personnel Policies of the City of Humble. 

 

7. Approval of the Party City Humble Development Plat, a Subdivision of 1.9450 acres of 

land and being a partial replat of Deerbrook Marketplace, Volume 384, Page 17, Harris 

County Map Records, situated in the Wherry B. Adams Survey, Abstract No. 95, Harris 

County, Texas; 1 Block, 1 Reserve. 

 

8. Approval of the RTG Humble Development Plat, a 5.053 acres tract of land situated in 

the Wherry B. Adams Survey, Abstract No. 95 as recorded under Harris County Clerk’s 

File Number 20150036948 of the Official Public Records of Real Property of Harris 

County Texas; and a 1.433 acre tract of land and a 1.272 acre tract of land part of a 

35.7883 Acre tract as recorded under Harris County Clerk’s File Number 20150036947 

of the Official Public Records of Real Property of Harris County, Texas; 3 Reserves. 

 

9. Approval of the Stripes on Will Clayton Subdivision Plat, a subdivision of 2.0010 Acres 

of land situated in the Wherry B. Adams Survey, Abstract No. 95, City of Humble, Harris 

County, Texas; 1 Block, 1 Reserve.   

 

10. Authorization for City Manager to negotiate terms of a real estate contract with Glenn 

Redmond for the purchase of 1.000 acres of land for the purposes of constructing an 

elevated water storage tank. 

 

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas 

will be held on Thursday, March 10, 2016 at 6:30 P.M. at the City Hall Council Chamber, 114 

West Higgins, Humble, Texas.  The following subjects will be discussed, to wit: See Agenda. 

 

Posted this 7
th

 day of March, 2016 at 5:00 P.M. 

 

 

      

City Secretary 

 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing Body of 

the City of Humble, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and that I posted a true and 

correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 114 West Higgins, Humble, Texas 

and the City’s website, www.cityofhumble.com.  The Agenda and Notice are readily accessible 

to the general public at all times.  Said Notice and Agenda were posted on March 7th, 2016 at 

5:00 P.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled 

time of said meeting. 

 

This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Humble City Hall on the 

following date and time:       by                   

http://www.cityofhumble.com/


 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the  , day of    , 2016. 

 

      

Notary Public – Harris County, Texas  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-10-2016 

 

AGENDA ITEM #2a 

 

FEBRUARY 11 MEETING MINUTES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 02-11-2016 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

FEBRUARY 11, 2016 – 6:30 P.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Merle Aaron, Presiding 
    Mayor Pro Tem Alan Steagall 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
    Council Member Andy Curry 
    Council Member Norman Funderburk 
    Council Member David Pierce 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske 
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Finance Director Aimee Phillips 
     Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
    Police Chief Delbert Dawes 
    Civic Center Director Sergio Corales 
    Asst. Public Works Director Mark Arnold 
    Fire Marshal James Nykaza 
    Lt. Ken Theis 
         
VISITORS PRESENT:  Juanita Steagall 
    Diane Pierce 
    Charlie Dromgoole 
    Jenna Armstrong 
    Jamie Smith 
    Robert Stitton 
    Jason Culpepper 
    Michael Pratts 
    Scott Brady 
    Jennifer Summer 
    Sam Schrade 
    Dr. Katherine Persson 
    Arliss Bentley  
   
Mayor Aaron called the regular meeting of the Humble City Council to order with a quorum present at 
6:30 P.M.   
 



Minutes 02-11-2016 

 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

Council Member Funderburk offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 
2A.  MINUTES – MEETING MINUTES JANUARY 28, 2016 
2B.  CURRENT INVOICES 
2D.  MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
2E.  CORRESPONDENCE 

 
Upon a motion by Council Member Funderburk, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) 
opposed to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 

3. ORDINANCE 16-775 AUTHORIZING A GENERAL ELECTION AND SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON 
MAY 7, 2016, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING A CITY COUNCIL MEMBER PLACE 3, A CITY COUNCIL 
MEMBER PLACE 4, A CITY COUNCIL MEMBER PLACE 5; AND A SPECIAL ELECTION FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, CERTAIN 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE EXISTING CHARGER OF THE CITY’ STATING THE PROPOSED 
AMENDMENTS TO BE VOTED UPON AT SAID ELECTION; ESTABLISHING EARLY VOTING LOCATIONS 
AND POLLING PLACES FOR THIS ELECTION; AND MAKING PROVISIONS FOR CONDUCTING THE 
ELECTION.  

 
ORDENANZA NO. 16-775 AUTORIZANDO LA ELECCION GENERAL Y LA ELECCION ESPECIAL QUE SE 
LLEVARA ACABADA EL 7 DE MAYO, 2016 PARA EL PROPOSITO DE ELEGIR AL MIEMBRO DEL 
CONSEJAL 3, MEIMBRO DEL CONSEJAL 4, MIEMBRO DEL CONSEJAL 5; Y UNA ELECCION ESPECIAL 
CON EL PROPOSITO DE PRESENTER CIERTAS ENMIENDAS AL AUTNOMA EXISTENTE DE LA CUIDAD; 
INDICANDO LAS ENMIENDAS PROPUESTAS QUE SE VOTARAN EN DICHA ELECCION; 
ESTABLECIENDO LOS CENTROS DE VOTACION ANTICIPADA Y LAS CASILLAS ELECTORALES PARA 
ESTA ELECCION; Y PARA CREAR PROVISIONES PARA DIRIGIR LA ELECCION.  
 
City Manager Boeske asked for approval of the ordinance. 
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed 
to approve Ordinance 16-775 ordering a General and Special Election.  
 

4. RESOLUTION 16-761 AMENDING THE FEE SCHEDULE FOR THE HUMBLE CIVIC CENTER AND ARENA 
COMPLEX.   
 
City Manager Boeske stated that updates had been made to the fee schedule from the resolution 
that was included in the packet.  Mr. Boeske further stated that the changes represented a roughly 
15% increase across the board while narrowing the margins between the standard and non-profit 
rates.   
 
Council Member Pierce asked how non-profit status was determined.  Mr. Boeske stated that 
entities needed to have a 501(c)3 designation from the IRS.     
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Curry, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed to 
approve Resolution 16-761.   



Minutes 02-11-2016 

 
5. AUTHORIZATION TO DISBURSE $10,000.00 TO THE LAKE HOUSTON AREA ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP.  
 

City Manager Boeske asked for approval.   
 
Mr. Jamie Smith, Chairman of the Lake Houston EDP stated that the EDP as well as the City have 
been working on this for a long time to enhance the area in which we lived, and said it was an honor 
to have the City of Humble support the efforts in that regard.   
 
Upon a motion by Council Mayor Aaron, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) opposed to 
approve providing $10,000.00 in funding to the Lake Houston Area Economic Development 
Partnership. 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD IN THE CITY COUNCIL CONVERENCE ROOM; DELIBERATION REGARDING 

REAL PROPERTY {GOV’T CODE SECTION 551.072}; POSSIBLE ACTION.   
  
The City Council recessed the regular meeting to convene in Executive Session at 6:38 P.M. on 
Thursday, February 11, 2016. 
 
The City Council reconvened the regular meeting at 6:58 P.M., no action was taken.   
 

There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor Aaron adjourned the Regular Meeting of 
the City Council at 6:59 P.M. on Thursday, February 11, 2016   

 
 
    
             

       Merle Aaron 
       Mayor 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-10-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #2B 

 

CURRENT INVOICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS

Water & Sewer Special Red Light Beautification Special 

Date General Fund Operating Fund Revenue Camera Projects TOTAL

2/2/2016 4,783.29                  4,783.29$                 
2/11/2016 170,659.21              10,725.96                     479.53                   5,208.33             187,073.03$             
2/12/2016 653.34$                   653.34$                    

2/19/2016 4,000.00$                4,000.00$                 

2/25/2016 162,804.79$           91,622.68                     3,545.24                52,699.92           300.00                 310,972.63$             
2/26/2016 404,119.06             404,119.06$             

342,900.63$           10,725.96$                   479.53$                5,208.33$           300.00$              404,119.06$          763,733.51$             























 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-10-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #2C 

 

MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

























































 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-10-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #2D 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

 

 

February 12, 2016 

Number 6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Don’t Want the State to Come Knocking? 

Review Firearms Signage Now to Avoid Civil Penalties 
  

Section 411.209 of the Texas Government Code is a new law that prohibits a city from 

displaying handgun signage in the wrong place.  Specifically it prohibits a city: 

 

from providing notice that a handgun license holder is prohibited from entering or 

remaining on the premises (“premises” generally means a building or a portion of a 

building, but not including any public or private driveway, street, sidewalk or walkway, 

parking lot, parking garage, or other parking area) or other place owned or leased by the 

city unless license holders are actually prohibited by state law from carrying a handgun 

on the premises or other place. 

 

The new law authorizes the attorney general’s office to investigate an alleged violation and seek 

civil penalties from a city that refuses to remove a sign that the attorney general deems improper.   

 

As written, the bill applies only to a concealed handgun sign under Texas Penal Code Section 

30.06.  However, an attorney general opinion issued late last year seems to incorrectly expand 

the attorney general’s authority under the law to include any sign, including signs pertaining to 

carry prohibitions that automatically apply (e.g., on the premises of courts or polling places). The 

opinion also erroneously expands the attorney general’s authority to investigate oral notice that 

carry is prohibited.  

 

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/GV/htm/GV.411.htm#411.209
https://texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/op/2015/kp0049.pdf


2 
 

The attorney general’s office has issued guidelines governing enforcement of the new law, and 

will likely soon begin investigating the dozens of complaints it has already received.  This makes 

it a good time for city officials to review their signage based on their interpretation of the law.   

 

Keep in mind that, except for the rare city facility that derives 51 percent or more of its business 

from the on-premises sale of alcohol, the Texas licensed carry law does not require any city to 

take any action or post any sign. 

 

Where a license holder can carry under the law becomes very complicated very quickly.  The 

League has prepared a detailed paper on the issues, but – at the risk of oversimplifying – the 

following is a brief summary of the most common city-related places where the carrying of a 

handgun by a license holder can be or is prohibited. 

 

1. Room where body subject to Open Meetings Act is meeting:  This is an optional 

prohibition that requires signage or other written or oral notice to be effective.  The only 

place that any city should display a Penal Code 30.06 and/or 30.07 sign is at the entrance 

to a room in which a meeting of a body that is subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act is 

taking place.  That posting is optional, and should be based on a city policy prohibiting 

licensed carry into such a meeting. 

 

2. Secure area of a law enforcement facility:  This is an optional prohibition that requires 

signage to be effective.  The handgun license law allows a peace officer to temporarily 

disarm a license holder when a license holder enters a nonpublic, secure portion of a law 

enforcement facility, if the law enforcement agency provides a gun locker where the 

peace officer can secure the license holder’s handgun and displays certain signage in 

English and Spanish.  This is a limited exception with many detailed requirements. 

 

3. Activity sponsored by school or education institution:  A person commits a third 

degree felony if the person intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly possesses or goes with 

any firearm on any grounds or building on which an activity sponsored by a school or 

educational institution is being conducted, whether the school or educational institution is 

public or private, unless pursuant to written regulations or written authorization of the 

institution. An attorney general opinion has concluded that this provision “prohibits 

handguns from places on which a school-sponsored activity is occurring, which places 

can include grounds otherwise excluded from the definition of ‘premises’ such as public 

or private driveways, streets, sidewalks or walkways, parking lots, parking garages, or 

other parking areas.”  It is very common for city facilities to host activities sponsored by 

a school or education institution.  During that time, no person may come onto the 

“grounds” of the facility, and no signage is required.   

 

4. Polling place during voting:  A person commits a third degree felony if the person 

intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly possesses or goes with any firearm on the 

premises of a polling place on the day of an election or while early voting is in progress. 

 

5. Government court or offices utilized by the court:  A person commits a third degree 

felony if the person intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly possesses or goes with any 

https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/apps/3006/index.php
http://www.tml.org/p/Feb%202016%20QA%20MunicipalGunRegulation%20FINAL.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/Draft%20Example%20Resolution%20Licensed%20Carry%20and%20Meeting%20Rooom.pdf
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/GV/htm/GV.411.htm#411.207
https://texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/op/2015/kp0050.pdf


3 
 

firearm on the premises of any government court or offices utilized by the court, unless 

pursuant to written regulations or written authorization of the court. 

 

6. Secured area of an airport:  A person commits a third degree felony if the person 

intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly possesses or goes with any firearm in or into a 

secured area of an airport (i.e., an area of an airport terminal building to which access is 

controlled by the inspection of persons and property under federal law). 

 

Items 3-6 above are state law prohibitions, and none of them requires any signage.  However, a 

recent attorney general opinion dealt with the “courts prohibition” in number five and concludes 

that a person is prohibited from carrying a firearm only into the room that actually houses a court 

or court office.  That opinion is contrary to what the League and most other attorneys have been 

advising for years under the concealed carry law.  The previous advice was that a person is 

prohibited from carrying a firearm into the entire building that houses a court or court office.  

 

Most governmental entities took that position because of the confusing nature of the law. In other 

words, because it wasn’t (and still isn’t) exactly clear into what “portion” of a courts building a 

licensee can carry, the licensee could (and still can) inadvertently commit a third degree felony 

for going to the wrong portion of the building.  

   

The opinion states that “[w]e routinely acknowledge that decisions like this are for the 

governmental entity in the first instance, subject to judicial review.  Accordingly, the responsible 

authority that would notify license holders of their inability to carry on the respective premises 

must make the determination of which government courtrooms and offices are essential to the 

operation of the government court.”  Pursuant to that advice, one possible option a city could use 

to address the confusion is to adopt a resolution making findings as to which of its room(s), 

portion(s) of building(s), or buildings are off-limits based on the polling place or court exception.  

 

Again, no signage is necessary for items 3-6.  However, some cities may deem it appropriate to 

post a sign of some type notifying the license holder that the area is considered off limits.  What 

would the signs look like?  Many would argue that a sign stating that the building, portion of a 

building, or room houses a prohibited area, such as a court or polling place, would be 

sufficient.  Still others might say that the Penal Code section prohibiting carry into those places 

could be mentioned: 

 

Court/Court Office/Polling Place/School Sponsored Activity 

All weapons are prohibited pursuant to Penal Code Section 46.03. 

An offense under that section is a third degree felony. 

 

Again, city officials should understand that they are not required to take any action with regard 

to licensed carry.  Moreover, the ultimate decision about whether to prosecute a license holder 

rests with the county or district attorney in most cases.  Thus, displaying signage in courts and 

polling places to assist license holders may or may not affect the outcome of any particular 

prosecution or lack thereof. 

 

 

https://texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/op/2015/kp0047.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/Draft%20Example%20Resolution%20Licensed%20Carry%20and%20Polling%20Places.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/Draft%20Example%20Resolution%20Licensed%20Carry%20and%20Court%20Premises.pdf


4 
 

U.S. Supreme Court Stays Clean Power Plant Rules 
 

In response to a request by a coalition of 29 states and state agencies, including Texas, the U.S. 

Supreme Court has stayed the implementation of the new “Clean Power Plant” proposed rule 

pending the outcome of further legal challenges.  As reported in previous editions of the 

Legislative Update, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) released the rule last 

year.     

 

The proposal is designed to cut carbon pollution from existing power plants by making them 

more efficient and less polluting.  It will be implemented through a state-federal partnership 

under which states develop a plan to use either current or new electricity production and 

pollution control policies to meet the goal of reducing carbon emissions. 

 

 

Facilities Commission Establishes Center for Alternative 

Finance and Procurement 
 

 

The Texas Facilities Commission (TFC) recently announced the establishment of the Center for 

Alternative Finance and Procurement to “ assist  governmental  entities  in  the  review  of  

proposals, negotiation of interim and comprehensive agreements, and  management  of 

qualifying projects under Government Code Chapters 2267 and 2268.” 

 

Passed in 2011, Chapters 2267 and 2268 of the Government Code were enacted by the Texas 

Legislature to encourage the use of public/private partnerships (P3s) by the state and its political 

subdivisions to develop “qualifying projects,” which include various infrastructure projects as 

defined by the law.   

 

The P3 law was presumably passed by the Texas Legislature to serve as enabling legislation that 

grants additional entities the authority to use P3s.  However, P3s are not new to cities.  In fact, 

cities have used various legal authorities for many years to develop P3 projects, such as the 

Dallas Cowboys Stadium in Arlington.   

 

To use the P3 law, the governing body of a political subdivision, including a city, must “opt-in” 

to elect to operate under its terms.  Once a city has opted in, the law imposes detailed procedures 

for the procurement and implementation of a qualifying P3 project. 

 

In 2015, the legislature amended the P3 law to provide, among other things, that the Texas 

Facilities Commission shall establish the “Center for Alternative Finance and Procurement” to: 

(1) consult with governmental entities regarding best practices for procurement and the financing 

of qualifying projects; and (2) assist governmental entities in the receipt of proposals, negotiation 

of interim and comprehensive agreements, and management of qualifying projects under the P3 

law.    

 



5 
 

The bill also provides that any guidelines adopted by a governmental entity under Chapter 2267 

must include the Center’s role in the review, analysis, or evaluation of the qualifying project.  

According to a press release, the Center “will ensure value for taxpayer dollars by establishing 

best practices and providing assistance in all aspects of planning, procurement, financing, as 

well as negotiations of contracts and ultimately construction of the projects.”  Samuel Franco 

has been named the Director of the Center and will be responsible for consulting with 

stakeholders in both public and private sectors.  Mr. Franco can be reached at 

Samuel.franco@tfc.state.tx.us. 

 

While the P3 law is an option, cities are authorized by other law to develop P3s.  Each city 

should consult with local legal counsel to determine which method best suits its needs.   

 

 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No other 

person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal 

League. 

mailto:Samuel.franco@tfc.state.tx.us


1 
 

 

 

February 19, 2016 

Number 7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Congress Makes Internet Tax Ban Permanent;  

Texas Remains Grandfathered 
 

On February 11, Congress passed H.R. 644, the Trade Facilitation and Trade Enforcement Act of 

2015, which was amended to include a permanent extension of the Internet Tax Freedom Act. 

When the Internet Tax Freedom Act was initially signed into law, it established that most local, 

state, and federal governments couldn’t impose taxes on internet access, but did so on a 

temporary basis such that the law had to be renewed again and again by Congress. With the 

passage of H.R. 644, the ban on internet access taxes is now permanent. Excluded from the 

permanent ban on internet taxes are a handful of states—including Texas—that imposed taxes on 

internet access prior to the passage of the initial legislation. H.R. 644 extends the grandfathering 

provision for these states, but only through June 30, 2020.   

 

Texas, and Texas cities, currently apply sales taxes to internet access charges in excess of $25 

per month. Assuming that H.R. 644 is signed into law by President Obama, Texas will continue 

to impose sales taxes on internet access through 2020.  

 

NFPA Fire Standards: NFPA 1730 Open for Public Input  

The National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) is seeking public comment on the “1730 

standard” which focuses on the elements of fire prevention programs. The NFPA is also drafting 

a standard for Community Risk Assessments and Planning through NFPA 1300.   



2 
 

NFPA is a nonprofit organization that develops voluntary fire protection standards through the 

work of technical committees composed of individuals representing various interests.  The 

National League of Cities (NLC) represents cities on the 1730 and 1300 committees. (TML’s 

assistant general counsel, Laura Mueller, is the NLC representative on the 1730 and 1300 

committees.)  

NFPA standards do not have the force of law, but they do attempt to establish best practices for 

fire departments.  In addition, state legislatures can adopt them as law.  As such, the NLC 

committee members work to ensure that NFPA standards are appropriate for each government 

fire department’s individual needs.  They do so by opposing criteria that do not provide the 

flexibility for each city to make judgments about risks, how to manage those risks, and how to 

allocate resources that balance fire prevention and intervention with other services. 

The 1730 Standard for Fire Prevention is flexible in that it uses a community risk assessment 

developed by each fire department to determine the fire prevention activities that are most likely 

to reduce the number of fires in a community.  Some examples include building inspections, 

code enforcement, plan review, investigations, and public education.  The standard does not have 

specific staffing or resource requirements, but does: (1) have sample staffing exercises for 

different activities; and (2) has a minimum inspection frequency based on the city’s own 

determination of level of risk.   

The 1300 Standard for Community Risk Assessment builds from the work on NFPA 1730 to 

require creation of an individualized community risk assessment and plan.  This standard does 

not have any minimum staffing or resources requirements, but does require the city to follow 

certain processes when completing its risk assessment, its community risk reduction plan, and in 

implementing the plan.     

To review the NFPA 1730 standard, go to www.nfpa.org/1730, click on the “NEXT EDITION” 

tab, create an account, and sign in. Written comments on the standard are due by June 29, 

2016. The NFPA 1300 standard is still in the process of being drafted but may open for comment 

later this year.    

Please contact Laura Mueller, TML assistant general counsel, at laura@tml.org or 512-231-7400 

with questions.   

 

House Committee on Urban Affairs Cybersecurity Hearing 
 

Chairwoman Carol Alvarado has invited all interested city officials to attend the House 

Committee on Urban Affairs hearing on cybersecurity next Tuesday, February 23 in San 

Antonio. Please see her invitation here. The Committee will hear invited testimony on the 

following interim charge: 

 

Identify and address potential gaps in cities’ cybersecurity policy and ensure that 

personal information held by cities and other municipal entities is secure. 

 

http://www.nfpa.org/1730
mailto:laura@tml.org
http://www.tml.org/p/AlvaradoUrbanAffairsCybersecurity.pdf


3 
 

The meeting will be held at the University of Texas at San Antonio, Main Campus in the H-E-B 

University Center, Ballroom, One UTSA Circle, San Antonio, Texas on February 23, 2016 at 

10:00 a.m. 

 

Please contact JD Pedraza, the committee clerk, at 512-463-9904 or Shanna Igo, the League’s 

Director of Legislative Services, at 512-750-8718 or sigo@tml.org if you have any questions. 

 

 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No other 

person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal 

League. 

mailto:sigo@tml.org


1 
 

 

 

February 26, 2016 

Number 8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Texas Supreme Court Denies Petition for Review in Water 

Rights Case 
 

Last week, the Texas Supreme Court denied the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality’s 

(TCEQ) petition for review in a case involving drought rules adopted by TCEQ in April 2012.  

 

During the severe drought of 2012-2013, Dow Chemical Company notified TCEQ that it was 

making a “senior call” on its water rights in the Brazos River. (A senior call occurs when the 

holder of a senior water right demands priority to use the water and that the holders of more 

junior water rights cease their use.)   

 

In response to Dow’s senior call, TCEQ issued a series of orders suspending water rights. 

However, the TCEQ elected not to suspend the use of certain water rights designated for use as 

municipal water supplies, as permitted under TCEQ’s drought rules. The Texas Farm Bureau 

then filed suit challenging the validity of TCEQ’s drought rules. The district court declared the 

drought rules invalid, and TCEQ appealed  

 

The Thirteenth Court of Appeals agreed with the district court. The court noted that TCEQ has 

authority to manage and regulate the state’s scarce water resource, but this authority cannot 

exceed its express legislative mandate. The court concluded that TCEQ’s authority does not 

allow TCEQ to exempt junior water rights from suspension.  It held so even though TCEQ was 

attempting to protect the drinking water of cities based on public health, safety, and welfare 

concerns.    

 



2 
 

Following the court of appeals’ decision, TCEQ filed a petition to the Texas Supreme Court, but 

the Court refused to hear the case.  That denial means that the “prior appropriations doctrine” 

remains the law for surface water in Texas.  (The prior appropriations doctrine simply means that 

the first person to take a quantity of water from a water source for beneficial use has the right to 

continue to use that quantity of water for that purpose. Subsequent users can take the remaining 

water for their own beneficial use, but they may not impinge on the rights of the “prior 

appropriator.”) 

 

What’s the bottom line?  For TCEQ to implement its drought rules in a way that would favor 

junior municipal water rights, the state legislature would have to expressly grant the agency the 

authority to do so.   

 

 

Open Carry:  The Gift that Keeps on Confusing? 
 

Yet another request for an attorney general opinion relating to the handgun license law has been 

submitted.  In the latest request (RQ-0097-KP), the Erath County Attorney asks the attorney 

general whether a non-profit entity that has offices on land owned by a city may restrict the 

carrying of concealed handguns on the property.   Thus far, no less than six attorney general 

opinion requests related to open carry have been submitted. Four opinions have been issued: 

 

 Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. KP-0047 (2015): Reviews the Penal Code provision making it a 

third degree felony for any person to carry any firearm on the premises of any 

government court or offices utilized by the court, unless pursuant to written regulations or 

written authorization of the court. Concludes that a person is prohibited from carrying a 

firearm only into the room that actually houses a court or court office.  (That opinion is 

contrary to what the League and most other attorneys have been advising for years under 

the concealed carry law.  The previous advice was that a person is prohibited from 

carrying a firearm into the entire building that houses a court or court office.)   

 

 Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. KP-0049 (2015): Reviews a new provision in the Government 

Code authorizing the attorney general to sue a state agency or a political subdivision that 

improperly posts a 30.06 notice.   As written, the law applies only to a concealed 

handgun sign under Texas Penal Code Section 30.06.  However, the opinion seems to 

incorrectly expand the attorney general’s authority under the bill to include any sign, 

including a signs pertaining to carry prohibitions that automatically apply (e.g., the court 

prohibition discussed above). The opinion also expands the attorney general’s authority 

to investigate oral notice that carry is prohibited.   

 

 Tex. Att’y Gen. Op. No. KP-0050 (2015):  Reviews the Penal Code provision making it a 

third degree felony for any person to carry any firearm on any grounds or building on 

which an activity sponsored by a school or educational institution is being conducted. 

Concludes that the provision “prohibits handguns from places on which a school-

sponsored activity is occurring, which places can include grounds otherwise excluded 

from the definition of ‘premises’ such as public or private driveways, streets, sidewalks 

or walkways, parking lots, parking garages, or other parking areas.” 

https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/rq/2016/pdf/RQ0097KP.pdf
https://texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/op/2015/kp0047.pdf
https://texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/op/2015/kp0049.pdf
https://texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/op/2015/kp0050.pdf


3 
 

 

 Tex. Att’y Gen Op. No KP-0051 (2015):  Reviews the provisions of the new campus 

carry law that allow public colleges and universities to adopt rules relating to where a 

license holder can concealed carry on campus.  Concludes that an institution may not 

adopt rules that are so strict they, as a practical matter, prohibit concealed carry by a 

license holder.   

 

Two opinions, both of which relate specifically to cities, are pending: 

 

 RQ-0087-KP asks several questions on behalf of the City of Alice city attorney relating 

to where Penal Code Section 30.06 and/or 30.07 signage should be posted. 

 

 RQ-0097-KP is the most recent request and asks whether a non-profit entity that has 

offices on land owned by a city may restrict the carrying of concealed handguns on the 

property.  (The League has opined that, as a general proposition, licensed carry may not 

be prohibited on property that is owned by the city.)  Cities that wish to comment on this 

request should do so immediately.   

 

The League has prepared a Q&A that provides the most current information available on the 

handgun license law.  

 

 

U.S. Supreme Court Stays Clean Power Plan Implementation 
 

On February 9, the U.S. Supreme Court granted the request of a coalition of states to block the 

implementation of the federal “Clean Power Plan” pending the outcome of several legal 

challenges.   Texas and West Virginia are leading a 27-state coalition challenging the plan, 

which would require states to cut carbon emissions by shifting from coal power to natural gas 

and renewables over the next 15 years. The coalition argues that the regulations could push 

electricity costs too high and threaten reliability. 

 

The U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia initially denied the coalition’s request. 

However, the U.S. Supreme Court subsequently granted the request pending disposition of 

litigation in the lower courts.   

 

The recent death of Justice Scalia – who voted to block the plan’s implementation – is not 

expected to have an impact on the decision to stay implementation. A vote of five justices is 

necessary to reverse the stay, and only four justices originally voted against granting the stay. 

The stay should remain in place until after the District of Columbia Circuit Court hears its 

challenges.  Oral arguments in that case have been set for June 2, 2016, and a decision in the case 

is expected in late summer or early fall.  

 

The National League of Cities and the U.S. Conference of Mayors plan to file an amicus brief in 

support of the plan.  

 

 

https://texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/op/2015/kp0051.pdf
https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/rq/2015/pdf/RQ0087KP.pdf
https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/rq/2016/pdf/RQ0097KP.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/Feb%202016%20QA%20MunicipalGunRegulation%20FINAL.pdf


4 
 

Comptroller Unveils New Transparency Program 
 

The Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts has announced the Transparency Stars Program, 

which recognizes local governments for going “above and beyond” in their transparency efforts. 

The comptroller will recognize governmental entities that accomplish the following: 

 

 Open their books not only in their traditional finances, but also in the areas of contracts 

and procurement, economic development, public pensions, and debt obligations. 

 Provide clear and meaningful financial information not only by posting financial 

documents, but also through summaries, visualizations, downloadable data, and other 

relevant information. 

 

The program will launch on Tuesday, March 1, and the comptroller’s office will begin taking 

applications at that time. Please visit the comptroller’s transparency website to learn more about 

the program and how to apply. 

 

 

House Committee on Urban Affairs Cybersecurity Hearing 
 

The House Committee on Urban Affairs held a hearing on cybersecurity last Tuesday to hear 

invited testimony on the following interim charge: 

 

Identify and address potential gaps in cities’ cybersecurity policy and ensure that 

personal information held by cities and other municipal entities is secure. 

 

Carol Alvarado, former TML President and chair of the committee, issued the following press 

release after the hearing: 

     
 TEXAS LEGISLATURE MUST MAKE CYBERSECURITY A TOP PRIORITY 

  

Austin – Today the Texas House Committee on Urban Affairs held a public hearing on 

cybersecurity at the University of Texas at San Antonio (UTSA), Main Campus.  

  

This committee was directed by the Speaker of the Texas House to identify and address 

potential gaps in cities' cybersecurity policy and ensure that personal information held 

by cities and other municipal entities is secure. The committee heard expert testimony 

from Dr. Mauli Agrawal, Vice President for Research at UTSA, and Dr. Greg White, 

Director for the Center for Infrastructure Assurance and Security at UTSA, as well as 

various city and utility representatives and private sector businesses located in San 

Antonio.  

  

“I think there was a strong consensus at the hearing that although Texas has made great 

strides in cybersecurity, our state must do more to help our state agencies, cities, 

municipalities and utilities have the proper resources and a strong workforce to protect 

their entities from cybersecurity attacks," said State Representative Carol Alvarado. 

http://www.texastransparency.org/Local_Government/stars/


5 
 

"The question is not if our cities and municipal entities will have a cybersecurity attack, 

but when they will experience a breach and how they will respond.” 

  

This was the committee’s second hearing on cybersecurity. The committee previously 

received testimony from various experts from the Texas Department of Information 

Resources (DIR), large metropolitan cities, and growing technology companies. 

  

“San Antonio, and most notably UTSA, have shown themselves to be at the forefront of 

cybersecurity and are a prime example of how a city has created various partnerships 

with the public and private sector to address the growing technological needs of a city 

and its community," said Representative Alvarado. “It is going to take a collaborative 

effort from the public and private sectors and an investment from the state to help make 

sure we can protect our cities and our citizens’ information. Our committee looks 

forward to working with UTSA, the business community, DIR, and other cities to find 

solutions to strengthen cybersecurity in our state.” 

 

Contact:     Crystal.Ford@house.state.tx.us/ 512.463.0732 

 

The league intends to work closely with Chairwoman Alvarado as the committee further 

explores municipal cybersecurity.  

                                                                                               

 

 

 

 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No other 

person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal 

League. 

mailto:Crystal.Ford@house.state.tx.us


1 
 

 

 

March 4, 2016 

Number 9 
 

Update: General Law City Sex Offenders Litigation  
 

Last Tuesday, the Second Court of Appeals in Fort Worth heard oral argument in the first of 

what is sure to be several appeals related to the authority of general law cities to adopt sex 

offender residency restriction ordinances (SORROs).   

 

Over the last decade, dozens of home rule cities and some 50 general law cities have enacted 

SORROs.  While each ordinance may have minor variations, the essential purpose is to prohibit 

a person who is required by state law to register as a sex offender from establishing a residence 

within a certain distance of places where children gather.   

 

In November 2015, at least 46 of the general law cities received a letter from Texas Voices for 

Reason and Justice (TVRJ), a “statewide criminal-justice advocacy group” that represents sex 

offenders, asking those cities to repeal their SORROs. 

 

Under current law, Texas has no statewide residency restriction for registered sex offenders. 

Instead, statutory provisions simply require sex offenders to register with the police department 

in the city where they live. Additionally, the parole panel is required to establish a “child safety 

zone,” an area a specified distance from the premises where children commonly gather, that a 

releasee is restricted from entering. However, the releasee may request that the parole panel 

modify the child safety zone at any time after the imposition of the condition of parole. Certain 

sex offenders on community supervision (probation, for example) may also be required to follow 

these guidelines as a condition of their probation. Once offenders have completed their sentence, 

there are no state regulations preventing them from being around children. 
   

The 46 general law cities that chose to enact a SORRO did so based on provisions in the Local 

Government Code that delegate to them the state’s “police powers,” which are those necessary to 

protect the health and safety of citizens.  

 

The TVRJ letters demanded that the cities repeal their SORROs by December 19, 2015, and 

threatened a lawsuit against any city that has not done so.  In the face of that threat, at least 13 



2 
 

cities chose to repeal their ordinances. Those cities did so not because they lack SORRO 

authority.  Rather, they did so because – as small, general law cities – they have limited 

resources to devote to litigation.  

 

TVRJ followed through with its threat by filing lawsuits against several of the remaining cities, 

including the Cities of Alvarado, Argyle, Fulton, Hickory Creek, Krum, Meadows Place, Oak 

Point, Ponder, West Lake Hills, and Westworth Village.  

 

The substance of the sex offenders’ claims – that general law cities have no authority to enact a 

SORRO – is largely based on a March 2007 opinion from the Texas attorney general’s office.  

The petitions allege that, because they are incorporated under the general laws, and no general 

law expressly delegates the authority to enact a sex offender residency restriction ordinance, the 

defendant cities are not authorized to enact one.  

 

Of course, attorney general opinions are not binding on courts. Moreover, the three-sentence 

conclusions in the one cited by TVRJ should be treated as dicta because the purpose of the 

opinion wasn’t to opine on general law authority, and it provides essentially no analysis as to the 

question of general law authority to enact a SORRO.   

 

The League filed an amicus curiae (“friend of the court”) brief in the case arguing that Sections 

51.001 and 51.012 of the Local Government Code provide the express prerogative to enact a 

SORRO as an “ordinance, act, law, or regulation” necessary for public welfare and “good order.”   

 

The League will provide updates on this case and others as they move through the process. 

 

 

Exempt Employee Salary Rules Coming 
 

In 2015, the United States Department of Labor proposed rule changes under the Fair Labor 

Standards Act (FLSA) that will raise the minimum salary requirement for an employee to be 

exempt from overtime.   

 

Currently, an employee must meet certain “duties” tests and receive a salary of at least $23,660 

to be exempt from overtime.  The proposed regulations will increase that minimum salary to 

$47,892.  This could mandate overtime pay to an employee who would otherwise be exempt 

under a “duties test,” but makes less than $47,892. 
 

The change would give two options to a city with employees described above: (1) raise the salary 

of the employee; or (2) pay the employee overtime pay or compensatory time off for any hours 

worked over 40 in a seven-day period.   

 

The National League of Cities filed comments regarding these proposed rules at the Department 

of Labor and sent letters to the United States Congress on the issue.  Additional information 

about the proposed rules is available from the Department of Labor.  

 

The final adoption of the rules is expected this summer.   

https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/50abbott/op/2007/htm/ga-0526.htm
http://www.tml.org/p/2015%20NLC%20comments%20Proposed%20FLSA%20regs%209.3.15.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/Press%20Version%20Public%20Employer%20Letter.pdf
http://www.dol.gov/whd/overtime/NPRM2015/


 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-10-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #3 

 

ORDINANCE 16-776 

 

CANCELLING GENERAL AND SPECIAL 

ELECTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 10, 2016 
10 de marzo do 2016 
 
To: Hon. Mayor and Council 
 Alcalde y Consejo de la Ciudad 
 
From: Jason Stuebe, City Secretary  
 Jason Stuebe, Secretaria de la Ciudad 
 
Re: Certification of Unopposed Candidates and Cancellation of General Election  and Special 
 Election 
  
 Certificación de Candidatos Sin Oposición y Cancelación de las Elecciones Generales y la 
 Eleccion Especial. 
 
A general election may be cancelled if each candidate for an office that is to appear on the 
ballot is unopposed.  As soon as possible after the deadline for declaration of write-in 
candidacy, if no candidate in the election is opposed on the ballot or by a declared write-in 
candidate, the City Secretary must deliver to the City Council a certification that each candidate 
for office is unopposed.   
 
Upon receiving the certification, the City Council may declare the unopposed candidates 
elected to office, in which case the election is not held.  The statute provides that a certificate 
of election is issued to each candidate who is declared elected, “in the manner and at the same 
time as provided for a candidate elected at the election.”  Candidates elected through 
cancellation must also qualify for office and take the oaths of office the same as candidates 
elected at an election.  
 
In the interest of fiscal responsibility and anticipated low voter turnout due to no contested 
races being on the ballot, I am recommending the the City Council also cancel the special 
election that was to be held to amend the City Charter.  
 
Se pueden cancelar elecciones generales si cada candidato a un cargo que ha de aparecer en la 
boleta, no tiene oposición.  Tan pronto como sea possible después de la fecha limite para la 

114 WEST HIGGINS ● HUMBLE, TEXAS ● 77338 ● (281) 446-3061 ● FAX (281) 446-7843 

OFFICE OF THE 
CITY SECRETARY 



declaración de “write-in” [ser un candidato en que los votantes agregan el nombre en el espacio 
en blanco en la boleta], si no hay candidatos oponentes en la boleta o ni una declaración de 
agregar en el espacio en blanco o “write-in,” entonces la Secretaria de la Ciudad deberá 
entregarle al Consejo de la Cidudad una certificación que cada candidadto para los cargos en la 
boleta se encuentran sin oposición. 
 
Al recibir la certificación, el Consejo de la Ciudad podrá declara a los candidatos sin oposición 
electos al cargo, en tal caso no se lleva a cabo las elecciones.  El estatuto proporciona que un 
certificado de eleccionesse emite a cada candidato declarado electo, “de la manera y al mismo 
tiempo como se indica para un candidato electo en elecciones.”  Los candidatos electos por 
medio de cancelación también deberán calificar para el cargo y tomar el juramento al cargo al 
igual que los candidatos electos en elecciones.   
 
En el interes de la responsabilidad fiscal y la anticipacion de bajo votuntes debido a no 
impugnada carreras de ser en la boleta electoral, estoy recomendando que el consejo de la 
ciudad de cancelar la eleccion especial que debia celebrar a modificar la Constitucion de la 
Ciudad.  
 
 
Thanks / gracias,  
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 
Secretaria de la Ciudad 



CITY OF HUMBLE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-776 

 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING UNOPPOSED CANDIDATES IN THE MAY 7, 

2016 GENERAL CITY ELECTION, ELECTED TO OFFICE; CANCELLING 

THE ELECTION; CANCELLING THE SPECIAL ELECTION; PROVIDING A 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the general city election was for May 7, 2016 for the purpose of electing members to the 

City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, the special city election was for May 7, 2016 for the purpose of submitting to the resident 

qualified voters of the city for propositions for certain proposed amendments to the 

existing Charter of the City of Humble, Texas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Secretary has certified in writing that no person has made a declaration of write-

in candidacy, and that each candidate on the ballot is unopposed for election to office; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, in the interest of fiscal responsibility, the City Council has determined it is not necessary 

to hold the special election for certain proposed amendments to the existing Charter of 

the City of Humble, Texas and hereby declares the measures moot; and 

 

WHEREAS, under these circumstances, Subchapter C and Subchapter D, Chapter 2, Election Code, 

authorizes the City Council to declare the candidates elected to office and cancel the 

election; now, therefore 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1. The  following candidates, who are unopposed in the May 7,  2016 general City election, 

are declared elected to office, and shall be issued certificates of election following the 

time the election would have been canvassed: 

 Candidate    Office Sought 

 Norman Funderburk   Council Member, Place 3 

 Allan Steagall    Council Member, Place 4 

 David Pierce    Council Member, Place 5 

SECTION 2.  The May 7, 2016 general City election is cancelled, and the City Secretary is directed to 

cause a copy of this ordinance to be posted on Election Day at each polling places used or 

that would have been used in the election. 

 

SECTION 3.  The May 7, 2016 special City election is cancelled, and the City Secretary is directed to 

cause a copy of this ordinance to be posted on Election Day at each polling places used or 

that would have been used in the election.   

 

SECTION 4.  If any portion of this Ordinance is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 

remaining provisions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.   

 

SECTION 5. This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

 

 



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 10
th
 day of March, 2016. 

       

       

 

 

      APPROVED: 

 

       

 

 

      MERLE AARON 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

Jason Stuebe 

City Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CIUDAD DE LA HUMBLE 

 

ORDENANZA NO. 16-776 

 

UNA ORDENANZA QUE DECLARA ELECTOS AL CARGO A LOS 

CANDIDATOS SIN OPOSICIÓN EN LAS ELECCIONES GENERALES DE LA 

CIUDAD DEL 7 DE MAYO DE 2015; CANCELANDO LAS ELECCIONES; 

CANCELANDO DE LA ELECCIÓN ESPECIAL; ESTIPULANDO UNA 

CLÁUSULA DE SEPARABILIDAD; Y ESTIPULANDO UNA FECHA PARA 

ENTRAR EN VIGENCIA. 

 

EN TANTO QUE las elecciones generals de la ciudad estaban programadas para el 7 de mayo de 2016 

con el propósito de elegir a miembros al Consejo de la Ciudad; y 

 

EN TANTO QUE la elección especial de la ciudad estaban programadas para el 7 de mayo de 2016 con el 

fin de someter a los votantes calificados que residen en la ciudad de proposiciones para ciertas enmiendas 

propuestas a la Carta existente de la Ciudad de Humble, Texas; y  

 

EN TANTO QUE la Secretaria de la Ciudad ha certificado por escrito que ningún individual ha realizado 

una declaración de candidature de agregar su nombre en el espacio en blanco de la boleta o “write-in,” y 

que cada candidato en la boleta se encuentra sin oponente para las elecciones al cargo; y 

 

EN TANTO QUE en el interes de la responsabilidad fiscal, el Consejo de la Ciudad ha determinado que 

no es necesario para sostener la eleccion especial para ciertas enmiendas propuestas a la Carta existente 

de la Ciudad de Humble, Texas y por la presente declara que las medidas discutibles; y 

 

EN TANTO QUE bajo estas circunstancias, el Subcaptulo C y Subcaptulo D, Capitulo 2 del Código de 

Elecciones autoriza al Consejo de la Ciudad declarar a los candidatos electos al cargo y cancelar las 

elecciones; ahora por lo tanto, 

 

QUE SE ORDENE POR EL CONSEJO DE LA CIUDAD, DE LA CIUDAD DE HUMBLE, 

TEXAS: 

 

SECCIÓN 1.  Los siguientes candidatos, los cuales se encuentran sin oponentes en las elecciones generals 

de la Ciudad del 7 de mayo de 2016, se declaran electos al cargo, y serán emitidos certificados de 

elecciones en el momento en que se hubiera realizado el escrutinio de los votos: 

 

Candidato    Cargo Deseado 

Norman Funderburk   Miembro del Consejo, Puesto 3 

Allan Steagall    Miembro del Consejo, Puesto 4 

David Pierce    Miembro del Consejo, Puesto 5 

 

SECCIÓN 2.  Se cancelan las elecciones generals de la Ciudad del 7 de mayo de 2016, y la Secretaria de 

la Ciudad hará una copia de esta ordenanza para ponerla en cada uno de los sitios utilizados para las 

votaciones o que se hubiera utilizado para las votaciones. 

 

SECCIÓN 3.  Se cancelan la elecciones especial de la Ciudad del 7 de mayo de 2016 cancela y la 

Secretaria de la Ciudad hará una copia de esta ordenanza para ponerla en cada uno de los sitios utilizados 

para las votaciones o que se hubiera utilizado para las votaciones. 

 

SECCIÓN 4.  Si alguna parte de esta Ordenanza se encuentra inválida por una corte competente dentro de 

la jurisdicción, entonces el resto de las provisiones de esta Ordenanza permanecerán en complete vigencia 

y vigor. 



 

SECCIÓN 4.  Estra ordenanza entrará en vigencia inmediatamente después de ser adoptada. 

 

PASADA, APROBADA, Y ADOPTADA por el Consejo de la Ciudad de Humble, Texas este dia 10 del 

mes de marzo de 2016. 

 

      APROBADA: 

 

 

 

 

      MERLE AARON 

      Alcalde 

 

DOY FE: 

 

 

 

Jason Stuebe  

Secretaria de la Ciudad  



 
 

CERTIFICATION OF UNOPPOSED CANDIDATES 

BY THE CITY SECRETARY 

 

 
 

I, Jason Stuebe, certify that I am the City Secretary of the City of Humble, Texas, and the authority 

responsible for preparing the ballot for the May 7, 2016 City election.  I further certify that no person has 

made a declaration of write-in candidacy, and all of the following candidates are unopposed: 

 

Candidate     Office Sought 

Norman Funderburk    Council Member, Place 3 

Allan Steagall     Council Member, Place 4 

David Pierce     Council Member, Place 5 

 

 

            

      Jason Stuebe, City Secretary 

      City of Humble, Texas 

 

 

Dated this 10
th
 day of March, 2016. 

 

 

CERTIFICACIÓN DE CANDIDATOS SIN OPOSICIÓN 

POR EL SECRETARIO DE LA CIUDAD 

 

 

 

Yo, Jason Stuebe, certifico que soy la Secretaria de la Ciudad, de la Ciudad de Humble, Texas, y la 

autoridad responsible para perparar la boleta para las elecciones de la Ciudad el 7 de mayo de 2016.  

Además certifico que ningún individuo ha realizado una declaración de candidature de agregar su nombre 

en el espacio en blanco de la boleta o “write-in,” y todos los candidatos siguientes se encuentran sin 

oponentes:  

 

Candidato     Cargo Deseado 

Norman Funderburk    Miembro del Consejo, Puesto 3 

Allan Steagall     Miembro del Consejo, Puesto 4 

David Pierce     Miembro del Consejo, Puesto 5 

 

    

 

            

      Jason Stuebe, Secretaria de la Ciudad 

      Ciudad de Humble, Texas 

 

 

Fechada este 10
avo 

día del mes de marzo de 2016. 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-10-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

ORDINANCE 16-777 

 

MULTIFAMILY DENSITY AND LOT SIZE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF HUMBLE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-777 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, 

TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 38, “SUBDIVISIONS,” SECTION 27 

“MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL USES; GENERAL PROVISIONS,” 

SUBSECTION (1) AND SUBSECTION (2); DECREASING THE NUMBER 

OF MULTIFAMILY DWELLING UNITS PER ACRE, AND AMENDING 

THE LOT SIZE; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY  

 

WHEREAS, Section 38-27 (1) and (2) “Subdivision Regulations; Multifamily 

Residential Uses; General Provisions” of the Code of Ordinances of the 

City of Humble states: 

 

(1) “Population Density not more than 15 multifamily dwelling units per 

acre shall be permitted.  Fractions of acres shall be proportioned in 

accordance herewith to determine maximum units allowable; provided, 

however, that minimum lot sizes shall be subject to subsection (2) of 

this section.   

 

(2) Lot Size  no lot to be used for a multifamily dwelling purposes shall be 

less than 60 feet in width or less than 120 feet in depth”; and 

 

WHEREAS, according to the 2010 – 2014 U.S. Census Bureau American Community 

Survey 5-Year Estimate 55.0% of occupied housing within the city limits 

of Humble is “Renter Occupied” compared to 45.0% owner occupied; and 

 

WHEREAS, according to the American Community Survey, the national average of 

“Renter Occupied” housing is 35.6% and the State of Texas average is 

37.3%, respectively; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it a public necessity to limit the continued growth 

of multi-family and renter occupied dwelling units within the city limits in 

order to create a more balanced and sustainable housing market within the 

city; now therefore  

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Humble, Texas, is hereby amended 

by deleting all of Chapter 38 Section 27 (1) and (2) thereof and substituting therefore a new 

Chapter 38 Section 27 (1)  and (2) to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 38-27 Multifamily Residential Uses; General Provisions 

(1) Population and density. Not more than ten (10) multifamily dwelling 

units, as defined by this section, per acre shall be permitted.  Fractions of 



 2 

acres shall be proportioned in accordance herewith to determine maximum 

units allowable; provided, however, that minimum lot sizes shall be 

subject to subsection (2) of this section.  

 

(2) Lot Size.   

a. The maximum site size for a multifamily residential dwelling 

development shall be ten (10) acres. 

b. The minimum lot area for a multifamily residential dwelling 

development shall be 12,000 square feet. 

c. The minimum lot width for a multifamily residential dwelling 

development shall be 100 feet. 

d. The minimum lot depth for a multifamily residential dwelling 

development shall be 120 feet.   

 

Section 2. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance 

or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged 

invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or 

invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to 

be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas, declares that it 

would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part 

thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

 

Section 3. That this ordinance shall go into effect immediately upon its passage. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 10 day of March 2016. 

 

        

 

              

       Merle Aaron  

       Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jason Stuebe 

City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-10-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #5  

 

ORDINANCE 16-778 

 

COMMERCIAL SET BACK LINES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF HUMBLE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-778 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, 

TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 38 “SUBDIVISIONS,” SECTION 23 

“BUILDING SETBACK RESTRICTIONS” SUBSECTION (2) “LOCAL 

STREETS” ITEM (C); AMENDING CHAPTER 12, “BUILDINGS AND 

BUILDING REGULATIONS,” SECTION 131 “COMMERCIAL 

SETBACK LINES,” SUBSECTION (3) AND SUBSECTION (4); AND 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY  

 

WHEREAS, Section 38-23 (2)(c) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Humble 

states: 

 

 “(2)  Local streets. 

 

c. All other properties not divided into lots or designed for the 

development of residential dwelling units which are adjacent to 

local streets (or major thoroughfares) must have a 20-foot 

building setback restriction provided along all adjacent streets.  

If, however, such properties are located directly across a street 

from residential lots or properties having a building setback 

restriction on such properties in excess of 20 feet, the building 

setback restriction required on the nonresidential property must 

be equal to or exceed the building setback restrictions established 

on the opposite residential properties.” 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12-131 (3) and (4) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Humble states: 

 

“(3) If, at the time of inspection, the stakes do not appear to be in the 

 correct place in relation to the 20-foot setback lines of the building, 

 the inspector at his discretion, may order the builder to furnish the 

 city with a certified letter from the surveyor, stating that the stakes 

 meet the above requirements. 

 

(4)  When commercial structures are constructed in predominantly 

 commercial areas, the following building setback requirements 

 may be applied: 

 

a. Zero clearance construction is allowed on side and rear 

building lines as long as the prescribed four-hour firewall is 

constructed in accordance with the International Building 

Code, the wall being eight inches of poured-in-place concrete 

of hollow mortar sand or perlite loose fill insulation. 



 2 

b. Zero clearance construction must meet the approval of the 

building official and fire marshal and must be detailed in all 

construction drawings.  Commercial buildings constructed on 

corner lots shall and/or may be constructed on the angular line 

created by connecting the 20-foot distance in both directions 

from the vertex of the corner.” 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 

 

Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Humble, Texas, is hereby amended 

by deleting all of Chapter 38 Section 23 (2)(C) thereof and substituting therefore a new Chapter 

38 Section 23 (2)(C) to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 38-23 Building Setback Restrictions 

(2)  Local Streets 

c. All other properties not divided into lots or designed for the 

development of residential dwelling units which are adjacent to 

local streets (or major thoroughfares) must have a 25-foot building 

setback restriction provided along all adjacent streets.  If, however, 

such properties are located directly across a street from residential 

lots or properties having a building setback restriction on such 

properties in excess of 25 feet, the building setback restriction 

required on the nonresidential property must be equal to or exceed 

the building setback restrictions established on the opposite 

residential properties.” 

 

Section 2. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Humble, Texas, is hereby amended 

by deleting all of Chapter 12, Section 131 (3) and (4) thereof and substituting therefore a new 

Chapter 12 Section 131 (3) and (4) to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 12-131 Commercial Setback Lines. 

 

(3) If, at the time of inspection, the stakes do not appear to be in the correct place 

in relation to the 25-foot setback lines of the building, the inspector at his 

discretion, may order the builder to furnish the city with a certified letter from 

the surveyor, stating that the stakes meet the above requirements. 

 

(4) Commercial buildings constructed on corner lots shall and/or may be 

constructed on the angular line created by connecting the 20-foot distance in 

both directions from the vertex of the corner.   

 



 3 

Section 3. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance 

or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged 

invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or 

invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to 

be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas, declares that it 

would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part 

thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

 

Section 4. That this ordinance shall go into effect immediately upon its passage. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 10 day of March 2016. 

 

        

 

              

       Merle Aaron  

       Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jason Stuebe 

City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-10-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #6  

 

RESOLUTION 16-762 

 

RETIREE BENEFITS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF HUMBLE 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-762 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, AMENDING SECTION 

10.10 RETIREE HEALTH AND DENTAL INSURANCE OF THE PERSONNEL 

POLICIES OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE. 

 

WHEREAS,  the governing body of the City of Humble, Texas deems it a necessity to amend Section 

10.10 of the Personnel Policies of the City of Humble as follows:  

 

10.10 RETIREE HEALTH, DENTAL, VISION, AND LIFE INSURANCE:  City of 

Humble employees who retire prior to becoming eligible for Medicare insurance 

may elect to continue their medical, dental, vision, and life insurance coverage 

through the City medical and life group insurance, dental and vision plans. The 

retiree must meet all the eligible provisions for retirement as set forth by the 

Texas Municipal Retirement System. The City of Humble will pay 75 percent of 

the retiree’s annual premium cost with the retiree paying the remaining 25 

percent of the annual premium cost. The retiree’s spouse and/or dependents may 

be covered under the policy; however, the retiree shall be responsible for 100 

percent of the spouse and/or dependent annual premium cost. (revised 3-10-

2016) 

 

An early retiree is covered up to age 65. Early retirees are required to notify the 

Plan Administrator of their Medicare eligibility or when they obtain other group 

coverage within 15 days of the date they are eligible for Medicare or when they 

obtain other group coverage. Failure to notify the Plan Administrator will result 

in termination of coverage retroactive to the date of retirement. The City of 

Humble reserves the right to recover any funds paid for claims during this period. 

(revised 06-11-2009) 

 

If the retiree dies while receiving the retiree coverage, the spouse and/or 

dependents may remain on the City medical and life group insurance, dental and 

vision plans for six months. The spouse and/or dependents may then elect to 

transfer to COBRA. (revised 3-10-2016) 

 

Retirees that leave the City medical and dental insurance program are not 

allowed to regain coverage.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HUMBLE TEXAS: 

 

Section 1:  That the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas does hereby amend Section 

10.10 of the Personnel Policies of the City of Humble as stated in the preamble of 

this Resolution.   

 

Section 2: That this amended Section shall go into effect immediately on and from the date of 

passage of this Resolution. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this the 10
th
 day of March, 2016. 

 



       

      APPROVED: 

 

 

            

      Merle Aaron 

      Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

Jason Stuebe 

City Secretary 



 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-10-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #8  

 

DEVELOPMENT PLAT 

 

PARTY CITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-10-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #8  

 

DEVELOPMENT PLAT 

 

ROOMS TO GO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RTG HUMBLE

“ ” 

“ ” “ ” 

“ ” “ ” “ ” 

Copyright © 2016

Tel. (713) 212-0011 Fax (713) 212-0010

7660 Woodway Drive, Suite 400

Houston, Texas 77063

TBPE # F-1048  TBPLS # F-10107503



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-10-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #9  

 

SUBDIVISION PLAT 

 

STRIPES ON WILL CLAYTON 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

3-10-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #10 

 

REAL ESTATE PURCHASE  

AUTHORIZATION 

 

 

 


	ITEM 8 - RTG Humble.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C0.4 PLAT



